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          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Good afternoon

          3  ladies and gentlemen.  Thank you for coming to

          4  today's hearing on State and Federal Legislation.

          5                 Today we are hearing eight topics on

          6  the State and Federal Legislation Committee.  We

          7  will be voting on 14 items, four at the request of

          8  the Mayor, two in rem legislations and eight

          9  pension-related bills, four of which have no cost.

         10                 We will hear testimony from the

         11  Administration and all of the bills they favor or

         12  oppose first.  What we will do, is that if your bill

         13  is being signed off on by the Mayor and approved by

         14  the Mayor, we are asking that if it's not necessary

         15  to testify, due to the interest of time, that you

         16  not testify, but if have a bill that the Mayor is

         17  not in favor of, please feel free to come up and

         18  testify.

         19                 First we will hear from the

         20  Administration.  We have Alan Anders from OMB

         21  (Office of Management and Budget), as well as James

         22  Hanley, Commissioner, and Jay Cooke of the Law

         23  Department of the City of New York.

         24                 Are you gentlemen present?  Okay.

         25  Please state your name and proceed.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  My name is

          3  James Hanley.  I am the Commissioner of Labor

          4  Relations for the City of New York. Given the

          5  difficult fiscal situation that we are in right now,

          6  and given the history of these types of bills, it's

          7  pretty easy to indicate that we're not in favor of

          8  any of these pension bills.  As far as the

          9  opposition is concerned, I must have misheard you.

         10  Did you say that they have no cost?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Four of the

         12  pension related bills have no cost tied to them.

         13  The others have a minimal cost tied to them.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  The others have

         15  what, I'm sorry.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  The others have

         17  some cost tied to them, but four of the pension

         18  bills have no cost tied to them.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  That's

         20  obviously something that we could never agree to,

         21  improving pension bills at any time, not to even

         22  indicate the period that we're in right now, where

         23  we have a difficult fiscal situation, to indicate

         24  that an improved pension bill or to suggest that an

         25  improved pension bill has no cost, is just mind
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          2  boggling.  Obviously, it defies logic and we could

          3  never agree.  If we had the opportunity to view

          4  these bills with some reasonable period of time --

          5                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Sir, what they're

          6  doing is mandating people to pay additional costs

          7  from their pockets, so therefore it has no

          8  additional cost on the City of New York's side, but

          9  its a mandated additional cost on the actual

         10  person's side and not the City of New York.  That's

         11  why there is no cost related effort on four of these

         12  bills.

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  At best, that's

         14  preposterous. The bills themselves, to suggest that

         15  even one of these bills, a 6.65% increase in member

         16  contributions, that that might cover the cost of the

         17  improved pension, if we had the opportunity to

         18  review these bills in some sufficient period of

         19  time, some legitimate period of time ourselves or,

         20  the Actuary of the City of New York who works for

         21  the City of New York, and for the unions in this

         22  town, then maybe we'd be in a position to agree or

         23  disagree.  But to suggest that the improvement --

         24  I've actually been doing this for a while so I do

         25  have some facility, I'm hardly an expert in the
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          2  area, but I do have some facility in these matters.

          3  To suggest that they either have no cost or low

          4  cost, if we had the ability to take a look at them

          5  ahead of time, we might be able to comment in a

          6  better fashion.  I see that there are some fiscal

          7  notes provided by the unions' actuary.  With all due

          8  respect we'd like to be able to have an impartial

          9  actuary take a look at the bills ahead of time so we

         10  would be in a better position to determine exactly

         11  how much they cost.  But there is a cost.  I think

         12  that if you want me to go through them all,

         13  certainly in the case of SLR 64 Peace Officer, City

         14  Investigator, I don't know if that one is on the

         15  agenda or not, so its hard for me to comment.

         16                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  It's preconsidered

         17  and its an A version, amended version.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  So it's before

         19  us today or not?  Okay.  There has been a period of

         20  time since we have sat down with our unions in the

         21  City of New York for certainly the last 15 years,

         22  and if there was a pension improvement that unions

         23  wanted, if we sat down in an orderly fashion and a

         24  more rational fashion, we've agreed upon the design

         25  of the plan, the costs of the plan, and the cost to

                                                            7

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  be borne by the employee, there have been numerous

          3  occasions where we have supported those bills.  If

          4  that had been the case here, we would have been in

          5  that position to support those bills.  That did not

          6  happen here.  So it's really quite a different

          7  situation.  This particular bill has a considerable

          8  cost to us.  If we had gone through that process

          9  that I suggested, then it would have been quite

         10  different.

         11                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Do we know what the

         12  cost is?  Can you please tell us --

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  We didn't have

         14  the --

         15                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  So how do you know

         16  its considerable if you do not know what the cost

         17  is?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Well, as I

         19  said, I've been doing this for over 30 years.  So,

         20  if you're talking about giving a 25 year retirement

         21  bill to Tier 2 and Tier 4 members, employed as

         22  public health sanitarians, market aides, market

         23  agents, consumer affairs inspectors, fire

         24  protection, you're talking about an improved

         25  pension.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Again, it's still

          3  mandated that all future employees pay extra on it

          4  and it can be amended later on also.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Right, and if

          6  we had been given the opportunity to take a look at

          7  it, I'd have a better handle on what the numbers

          8  are.  To suggest that it costs 6.25% is sophistry.

          9  But, that may be sufficient for some.  It's

         10  certainly not for us and it's not consistent with

         11  the way in which we have done business with most of

         12  our unions since 1987 that I'm familiar with.      Clearly

         13  , we are in a difficult budget situation, as you

         14  know.  There are also possible technical problems

         15  with this particular bill.  This particular special

         16  officer retirement plan might allow for a new

         17  participant to join without having to pay the

         18  initial member contributions.  So we are advised

         19  that there may be technical problems with it, I

         20  don't know.  But there may very well be and I don't

         21  we'd want to be in that situation as well.

         22                 SLR 70, I don't know if that's in

         23  front of us today or not.  I don't have an agenda or

         24  anything so it's a little tough. We don't have a

         25  comment at this time.
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          2                 SLR 71, is that on the agenda for

          3  today?  It is. That's granting a peace officer

          4  three- quarter accidental disability retirement bill

          5  to Tier 4 members of NYCERS and BURS, employed as

          6  special officers, parking control specialists,

          7  school safety agents, campus peace officers and taxi

          8  and limousine inspectors. The cost, according to the

          9  union actuary, is at least $250,000.00. Now the

         10  reason that might seem low to you is the number of

         11  people is small, but if this bill passes, we'll be

         12  back here next year with larger groups saying, if

         13  you gave it to the smaller group, clearly you have

         14  to give it to us.  So the costs, we don't

         15  necessarily accept that particular number, but even

         16  if it were low, the impact on a larger group of

         17  people could be enormous.  If in fact, we had done

         18  this the way that we have done many of these bills,

         19  through the bargaining process, our reaction would

         20  be quite different.  It's questionable whether or

         21  not these duties are inherently dangerous.  The

         22  grants benefit similar to the police department and

         23  the fire department with no compelling reasons and

         24  there are technical drafting problems with this

         25  particular bill as well.  It's unclear whether or

                                                            10

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  not the final average salary would be based on the

          3  three- year average or on the five- year average.

          4  So, a more well thought out process certainly would

          5  have been more desirable and if we had had the

          6  opportunity to have the actuary do an evaluation of

          7  these, we would have felt differently.

          8                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  The actuary is

          9  actually here today so we will be able to hear from

         10  him as well, but it is from three to five years.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  It is from

         12  three to five years.  Is it three or is it five?

         13                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  We'll wait till the

         14  actuary gives us that information.  They are here

         15  today, so they will be able to share that with us.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Okay.  SLR 75,

         17  is that before us today?  It is.  Okay.  This allows

         18  MTA police officers to transfer their membership and

         19  pension credits from the New York City Police

         20  Pension Fund to the MTA Pension Fund.  Obviously

         21  we're opposed to the bill.  There is a cost.  The

         22  transfer of the reserves from the Police Department

         23  Pension Fund to the MTA Pension Fund is

         24  approximately, well it's close to $200,000.00 per

         25  year, just according to the union actuary.  So
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          2  there's a cost.  So we are opposed to it for that

          3  reason primarily.  Process- wise, it's a different

          4  story.

          5                 SLR - Senate 4123 Assembly 7920?

          6  That's on the agenda today.  Okay.  Urban Park

          7  Rangers and Associate Park Rangers a 25 year

          8  retirement bill.  We are opposed.  It should go

          9  through the collective bargaining process, not to

         10  bargain on pensions, but the support of legislation

         11  as I had indicated before.  We've done this with

         12  many other unions.  I think it's a bit of a slap in

         13  the face to the other unions who did it in a more

         14  responsible fashion. It's speculative whether or not

         15  it costs 6.25% in additional member contributions.

         16  It's odd that that's a number that seems to be

         17  identical to another pension bill, it usually

         18  doesn't go that way. Clearly, we're in the budget

         19  situation that we are in right now. There are

         20  possible technical problems with this particular

         21  bill and the Special Officer's Retirement Plan might

         22  allow for a new participant to join without having

         23  to pay the additional member contributions.

         24                 SLR 88, is that in front of us today?

         25    It is.  Okay. It's a little unusual.  Watershed
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          2  Police 25 year retirement plan and a three- quarter

          3  disability and a HAT (phonetic) bill.  So this puts

          4  a whole bunch of bills altogether in one.  We don't

          5  have a cost from the City's Actuary.  I don't

          6  believe he had the opportunity to take a look at it,

          7  but certainly we didn't have one as of late

          8  yesterday.  The actuary to the unions estimated that

          9  there is a cost of at least $30,000.00 going out to

         10  $300,000.00 in the out years.  Other than the

         11  bargaining comment, it creates a more generous

         12  benefit than police officers and firefighters have,

         13  without any justification.  The bill does not

         14  require disability to be the result of an accident,

         15  it only has to be in the performance of duty.  The

         16  duty is not as inherently dangerous as other uniform

         17  employees, or as uniform employees.  There is no

         18  scientific evidence to justify the HAT provision and

         19  it would be illegal to test employees for HIV before

         20  hiring.  For all of these reasons, we are opposed to

         21  the bill.  Obviously, the spill- over effect to

         22  other employees who may have a more meritorious

         23  claim is obviously a concern too.  I'm sure we'll be

         24  here next year if this bill passes.

         25                 SLR 69, is that in front of us today?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  No it's not.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  It's not.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  It is actually.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Oh, it is.

          6  Okay thanks.  This would allow police officers to

          7  collect their pensions while working as teachers in

          8  the New York City public schools.  They will not be

          9  eligible to earn a teacher pension.  We are opposed

         10  to the bill. It's double dipping.  We are opposed to

         11  double dipping.  There is already a provision in the

         12  Law, whereby the Department of Education can grant

         13  section 211 waivers in instances where we believe

         14  its appropriate.  That's been in existence for some

         15  time, so to the extent that the bill is before us,

         16  it's at best redundant, but we don't believe it's

         17  necessary.  The actuary for the union, the union

         18  actuary, has estimated that this costs $300,000.00,

         19  going up to $3 million dollars in 2012.  That's a

         20  lot of money by anybody's estimate, but that's the

         21  union actuary.  If we had an impartial actuary, I

         22  think I'd feel a little bit better and I'd like to

         23  see, if we had the opportunity, to cost it out.  So,

         24  there is a heavy cost indeed.

         25                 Senate 4258 - Assembly 8668, is that
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          2  in front of us?

          3                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Yes it is.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  It is.  This

          5  would allow police officers and firefighters to

          6  collect their pensions while working as teachers in

          7  the New York City public school system. They would

          8  not be eligible to earn their teacher pension.  For

          9  the same reasons, it's a double dipping bill.  The

         10  section 211 waivers are in front of us already and

         11  in addition to that, the union actuary ascribes a

         12  number of $1 million, going up to $10 million in

         13  2012.  So to suggest that there are no costs, even

         14  the union actuary has numbers on these bills of many

         15  millions of dollars.  At time when it books no

         16  denial that we are in a terrible fiscal situation.

         17  So to add on more pension bills at this time, I

         18  believe, would be

         19   -- I guess you can fill in your own word.  We would

         20  be opposed to it.  We think that it would exacerbate

         21  an already bad and difficult situation and we would

         22  ask you to not pass these bills.

         23                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Thank you very much

         24  for your testimony.  If there are no questions from

         25  the Committee --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Are there any

          3  other bills that we missed that might be in

          4  progress?

          5                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  We actually did all

          6  the bills that we'll be talking about today.

          7  Council Member Helen Sears does have a question for

          8  you sir.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.  I have just one question.  You're stating

         11  that you have, that this is so sudden to you and you

         12  really need time to reflect on these.  My question

         13  is, how long has the Administration had these,

         14  because when I see an S and I see an A, I know that

         15  all of this is sent over, however, it's done,

         16  electronically or whatever, and the Mayor certainly,

         17  or your office, gets copies of these.  Now I can't

         18  tell you the day and the time when you got that, so

         19  my point is that you have had to have these maybe

         20  not for endless time, but you've had to have them

         21  and it means that you needed to do your homework and

         22  I'm trying to say that as respectively as possible.

         23  I do not believe that we're doing something that you

         24  are not aware of.  You haven't had time to look at.

         25  We've had these for some time and why we're doing
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          2  this and it's also because we're sending stuff up to

          3  the State Legislature.  I think that you've had

          4  them, maybe it might not have been a priority or

          5  maybe you elected not to look at them, and when I

          6  say you, I mean as a whole, not you individually.

          7  So, I really think that there probably has been time

          8  and whether the proper authorities chose to review

          9  it, and maybe there were so many of them, that it

         10  just got caught up in a bundle, but I believe the

         11  process is such where you are not taken short by

         12  these.  I believe that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  What you

         14  believe you are entitled to believe.  This is

         15  America.  By the same token, the actuary for the

         16  systems, who is in the room today, I did talk to,

         17  about four minutes ago, or certainly a minute or two

         18  before I started to testify.  He did not have these

         19  bills in a timely fashion.  He is appointed by the

         20  unions and by the City at the same time.  He is

         21  impartial in every sense of the word.  He did not

         22  have enough time to calculate these bills.  Now,

         23  there are some actuaries, I suppose, that could cost

         24  these out in a matter of an hour or so.  There are

         25  some that it takes time.  This is a very complicated
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          2  process and you have to actually custom tailor every

          3  one of these bills for the demographics of the

          4  people that it will apply to.  A very complicated

          5  process indeed, if one has a desire to be accurate

          6  and fair.  So the actuary is here, you can ask him

          7  what date he got them.  I don't know.  I do know

          8  that he works for all sides and he didn't have the

          9  time to cost these out.  The union actuary did and

         10  his process might have been a little bit shorter, I

         11  guess.  But certainly the actuary to the systems,

         12  all systems, didn't have enough time to cost these

         13  out, all of them as of yesterday.  Now maybe he did

         14  one or two of the smaller bills today, I do not

         15  know.  But all of them as of yesterday had not been

         16  costed out.

         17                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Council Member

         18  Vincent Gentile from Brooklyn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you

         20  Mr. Chairman. Commissioner Hanley, just then to

         21  follow up, because during your testimony you did

         22  question the 6.25% I believe it is, additional

         23  contribution as not being sufficient.  If you really

         24  haven't had the opportunity to cost these out, I'm

         25  curious as to how you come to that determination
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          2  that that 6.25% is not sufficient to cover these

          3  costs.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Well the

          5  obvious observation is you have 6.25% as an

          6  additional member contribution for two separate

          7  bills.  That's virtually impossible to do that.  To

          8  custom tailor a bill for different demographics

          9  based upon the time and age of entry in the plan

         10  itself, and different benefits and different

         11  demographics, and somehow or other the two of them

         12  come out to the exact same number, that really does

         13  defy logic.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  What you are

         15  suggesting is that no one has does a cost analysis

         16  on this?  Is that what you are suggesting?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  The bill --

         18  somebody put 6.25% --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  The number

         20  just appeared, or?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Yeah, I think

         22  that is a virtual impossibility at first blush.  In

         23  addition to that, as I said I'm not an actuary, but

         24  I have been doing this for well over thirty years,

         25  so I do have some kind of a sense of these bills.  I
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          2  have seen similar bills in the past and I believe

          3  that that cost is low.  I would love to be proven

          4  wrong.  But if we were wrong, wouldn't it be

          5  terribly unfair to these employees to have them pay

          6  a contribution amount that's greater than what they

          7  should be paying.  That would really be unfair and

          8  I'd hate to see that happen too.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  What's your

         10  estimation of what you think the real numbers would

         11  be?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  At first blush

         13  I believe it's higher than that, but I'd rather have

         14  an actuary do an analysis, an impartial actuary, do

         15  an analysis in the first instance before I would

         16  speculate on it.  These things are too complicated

         17  to have an off the cuff answer.  Others are more

         18  comfortable with it,  I'm not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I just have

         20  one other question.  You mentioned the issue with

         21  the police and fire retirees and their ability to be

         22  employed and you indicated that it would be double

         23  dipping, but I don't understand how it's double

         24  dipping if in fact they would agree to waive any

         25  right to earn a pension during the time of their
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          2  service.  So I don't see how you call that double

          3  dipping.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Okay.  They

          5  would be getting their salary as a retired member of

          6  the police department or the fire department and

          7  their pension as a retired member of those agencies

          8  and they would be getting their salary as a teacher.

          9  That's double dipping by my definition, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  They have

         11  agreed to waive the right to earn that pension

         12  during the term of their service.

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  To earn new

         14  time for pension purposes as a teacher, but not the

         15  salary as a teacher.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay.  So

         17  you're saying the double dipping comes from earning

         18  the pension as a retiree?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  And the

         21  salary?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay.  Let

         24  me think about that one.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Council Member

                                                            21

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  Hiram Monserrate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          4  Mr. Chair.  On the same topic, when you say double

          5  dipping about collecting a pension and a salary.

          6  If retired police officers or firefighters were not

          7  filling those vacancies, those salaries would be

          8  going to other folks, would they not be?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Sure, but they

         10  wouldn't be getting a pension.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So, in

         12  essence, what I'm trying to get to in my mind is, in

         13  essence, I don't see how that's an additional cost.

         14  In other words, for instance if Joe Smith retired

         15  from the Police Department last week and was hired

         16  by the Department of Education to teach physical

         17  education, it's no additional cost, it's just one

         18  person who is able to get a pension and a salary, am

         19  I correct?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  The individual

         21  employee would get a salary and a pension, which is

         22  currently prohibited by law.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  It's

         24  prohibited, but there would be no additional cost to

         25  the City.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Net- net I

          3  suppose the answer is.  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          5  very much. That's my question Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          7  much Hiram.  Is there any other questions from the

          8  Committee members?

          9                 Seeing that there are no other

         10  questions, thank you very much, sir.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Does the actuary

         13  have any comments on OMB's testimony?

         14                 Hi, how are you, sir?  Just state

         15  your name for the record and proceed with your

         16  testimony.

         17                 MR. NORTH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18  I am Robert C. North, Jr.  I am the Chief Actuary

         19  for the New York City Retirement Systems.  With me

         20  is John Gibney, who works in my office as one of my

         21  Administrative Actuaries.

         22                 I would just like to comment first on

         23  a question regarding the availability of the

         24  information on the fiscal votes. As you all are

         25  aware, each year in Albany several hundred bills are
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          2  introduced that affect pension in the New York City

          3  Retirement Systems.  Our staff is completely

          4  incapable of doing that number of bills and

          5  preparing detailed fiscal notes for each.  What we

          6  do, is we try to figure out which bills are most

          7  likely to come before you and/or the Legislature for

          8  enactment, and try to concentrate our resources on

          9  those.  That seems to be a definitely a moving

         10  target and I must confess that this year we seem to

         11  have managed to produce fiscal notes on bills which

         12  you then seem to have taken off the agenda and

         13  failed to produce bills which you have on the

         14  agenda.  It's almost like we just can't seem to get

         15  it right.  It is a problem in that, and I know it's

         16  very difficult for you as well.  The agendas move

         17  and the requests move and we don't have the resource

         18  to the hundreds.  We need to whittle it down to

         19  what's most likely to be there.  We will do our best

         20  as an office to supply this Council with the

         21  information as we do to both Labor and Management as

         22  best we can.  So that's my first comment, just in

         23  general.

         24                 Second, on the issue of the -- there

         25  was an extended discussion on the issue of these new
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          2  improved retirement plan -- 25 year bills with

          3  additional member contributions.  Just as a generic

          4  set of comments, because I cannot comment as to the

          5  reasonability of the percentages that have been

          6  established.  There are two points I'd like to make.

          7    In funding the systems in terms of employer

          8  contributions that are made, we value the benefits

          9  of those members who participate in the plans at any

         10  given point in time.  A valuation conducted on June

         11  30, 2002 of the members in a plan is used to

         12  determine the employer contribution for Fiscal year

         13  2003, as an example.  So, now you have one of these

         14  bills.  When you first put it in, the people who

         15  elect into these planes generally are more costly

         16  than the rate that is shown in the bill. So if 6.25%

         17  might be a reasonable average rate for both current

         18  members and new entrants over a 20- year period, or

         19  10- year period or whatever, the people who are

         20  currently there that elect in first are bound to

         21  have an additional actuarial present value of

         22  employer contributions that will result in an

         23  increase in employer contributions at least in the

         24  early years, because the later new entrants are

         25  generally going to pay more than the absolute
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          2  minimum necessary to cover their benefits.  So

          3  that's the first thing with respect to the pension

          4  design and this doesn't necessarily mean in the long

          5  run the rate doesn't produce a reasonable cost

          6  neutral design.  It does mean that there generally

          7  will be an employer contribution affect in the early

          8  years.

          9                 Second, these bills generally call

         10  for additional member contributions that may or may

         11  not reflect the potential impact of increased post-

         12  retirement medical costs that occur whenever you

         13  have accelerated early retirement.  The sooner you

         14  have early retirement and people leave employment,

         15  they have to be replaced by another active and we

         16  generally provide post- retirement medical and then

         17  we're paying for two people, where maybe on person

         18  would have continued in employment for some time.

         19                 So these are just some general

         20  observations on the bills.  I apologize that we

         21  can't give you specific numbers on the ones that

         22  were raised, but just hopefully we'll provide some

         23  input.

         24                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Thank you very

         25  much.  Are there any questions from the Committee?
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          2  Seeing none.  Thank you very much, sir.  Next we'll

          3  hear from the Administration.  They may proceed

          4  forward and given their testimony on the bills that

          5  you are in favor of.

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  In order to

          7  move your hearing along we just wanted to read into

          8  the record our support for the Mayor's message on

          9  the bills before you.  I can put into support the

         10  Mayor's message.

         11                 Senate Bill 5030A and Senate Bill

         12  5213 in support.

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Also, S 5029.

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  As well as the

         15  Red Light Camera Bill, Senate 2472 A, Assembly 4806

         16  A.

         17                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  That's it.  Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 (Meeting adjourned at 5:06 p.m.)
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